1977

Abbott G. M. Diesel, Inc. v. Piper Aircraft Corporation et al : Brief of Plaintiff-Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from an Order of the Third Judicial District Court of Salt Lake County entered by District Court Judge Marcellus K. Snow whereby Judge Snow quashed service of summons upon defendant-respondent Piper Aircraft Corporation, (hereinafter "Piper"), and dismissed without prejudice this action by plaintiff-appellant Abbott G. M. Diesel, (hereinafter "Abbott"), as against Piper.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

By a motion dated April 30, 1976 Piper moved the court below to quash the service of summons upon it and to dismiss this action against it by Abbott, upon the grounds that Piper was not subject to the jurisdiction of the court. (Record 38-39). On January 4, 1977 the Third Judicial District Court

of Salt Lake County, Judge Marcellus K. Snow, granted Piper's motion, quashing service of summons upon Piper and dismissing the action by Abbott against it. (Record 84-85).

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Abbott seeks reversal of the Order of the Court below whereby said court quashed service of summons upon Piper and dismissed this action as against it. Abbott seeks to have this court hold Piper subject to the jurisdiction of the lower court.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Abbott brought this action against Piper and Defendant Corpac-West seeking damages of each defendant, jointly and severally, for breach of contract, i.e. delivery of non-conforming goods; (Record 2-7), and breach of contract, i.e. breach of express and implied warranties of merchantability, warranties of fitness for a particular use and marketable quality; (Record 7-9). Additionally Abbott seeks of defendant Corpac-West damages based upon a mutual mistake of a material fact. (Record 8-9).

Abbott alleges Piper is both doing business in Utah and that it has caused injury to Abbott by virtue of Piper's activities in this state. (Record 2).

Piper has filed an Affidavit which asserts that it does no business in Utah, has no salesman, offices, records,

goods or property located in this state and that any and all contacts with the state of Utah occur through independent businessmen located here or elsewhere. (Record 41-43; 45-50). Piper contends that the contacts it has with this state do not constitute those "minimum contacts" necessary for a Utah Court to properly assert jurisdiction over it consistent with the dictates of the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution as interpreted by the United States Supreme Court. (Record 45-50).

By appropriate Affidavit Abbott has established that Piper solicits business of Utah residents by mailings to Utah and seeks the business of Utah residents through advertisements placed in nationally circulated magazines which are regularly circulated in this state. (Record 52-53). Abbott has also established that Piper employs a Regional Sales Representative and a Regional Service Representative who regularly visit the state of Utah at five to six week intervals to promote customer relations and to confer with Piper's sales outlets with respect to Piper sales and service matters. (Record 54). Additionally Abbott's Affidavit shows that Piper has entered into a number of written contracts with Utah residents, (Record 54, 77-78), has established Piper Flite Centers in Utah to encourage Utah residents to use Piper products, (Record 54, 78), that Piper has property located in Utah (Record 54, 78), that Piper is regularly,

consciously and carefully directing and controlling the sale and use of Piper manufactured products in this state, (Record 54, 77-79), that Piper from time to time sends its employees to Utah for the purpose of inspecting and approving facilities as authorized Piper Service Centers, (Record 54, 79), that Piper through agents performs warranty services in this state, (Record 54, 78-79), and that Piper regularly seeks the aid of Utah residents in promoting its business in Utah (Record 54, 80). Abbott contends that these activities constitute, upon Piper's part, doing business in Utah so as to subject Piper to the jurisdiction of the courts of this state.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

PIPER IS DOING BUSINESS IN UTAH

In Hill v. Zale Corporation, 25 Utah 2d 357, 482 P.2d 332 (1971) this court enunciated those factors which bear upon the question of whether or not a foreign corporation is doing business in Utah so as to be subject to the jurisdiction of the courts of this state. Those factors are stated as follows:

"When the problem arises, its solution depends on whether it can fairly be said that the corporation is doing business within the State in a real and substantial sense. This involves the analysis of a number of factors,

none of which is alone the sine qua non to establish a business presence in the State, but from a consideration of the total picture as to the existence or absence of them the answer to that critical question is to be found:

1. Whether there are local offices, stores or outlets;

2. The presence of personnel, how hired, fired and paid; the degree of control and the nature of their duties;

3. The manner of holding out to the public by way of advertising, telephone listings, catalogs, etc.;

4. The presence of its property, real or personal, or interest therein, including inventories, bank accounts, etc.;

5. Whether the activities are sporadic or transitory as compared to continuous and systematic;

6. The extent to which the alleged facts of the asserted claim arose from activities within the state;

7. The relative hardship or convenience to the parties in being required to litigate the controversy in the state or elsewhere."

25 Utah 2d at 360, 482 P.2d 334.

How these above-stated factors are to be analyzed and applied is cogently stated in Union Ski Co. v. Union Plastics Co., 548 P.2d 1257, 1259 (Utah 1976) as follows:¹

"In harmony with the foregoing this court has consistently held that the transaction of

¹ See also Pellegrini v. Sachs & Sons, 522 P.2d 704, 705 (Utah 1974) where this Court followed the Hill v. Zale Corp. decision, supra.

has consistently held that the transaction of business within the meaning of our statute requires that the defendant has engaged in some substantial activity with some degree of continuity within this State. In the case of Hill v. Zale Corp., we set forth a number of examples of activity to be examined in determining whether, by reason of any one of them, or any combination of them, it can fairly and reasonably be said that activities of the foreign corporation in this State should subject it to the jurisdiction of our courts."

[Emphasis added].

Thus it is readily apparent that in order to determine whether or not Piper should be subject to the jurisdiction of Utah's courts with regard to the instant action the Hill v. Zales Corp. factors, supra, should be examined to determine whether "by reason of any one of them, or any combination of them, . . ." it is fair to subject Piper to the jurisdiction of Utah's courts. Examination of these above-stated factors as per Piper in this case clearly shows that Piper is and should be subject to the jurisdiction of the courts of Utah.

(1) Does Piper have local offices, stores or outlets?

Piper, as an entity, does not maintain local offices. However Piper contracts on a continuous, ongoing basis with local Utah business firms in order to have sales and service outlets in Utah. See Statement of Facts, supra. These local businesses, operating as stores or outlets, are tightly controlled by Piper for the purpose of fostering the sale and servicing of Piper products in this state. Therefore Piper does have agents operating in Utah. See Statement of Facts, supra.

(2) Does Piper employ persons in Utah?

Piper has no employees who live in Utah. However Piper does regularly have its employees come into this State, on five to six week intervals, to foster Piper sales and service, provide guidance to Piper dealers, and approve Piper service outlets. See Statement of Facts, supra. Additionally Piper supplies parts and aircraft, advertising logos and other materials to its dealers located in Utah in order to foster sales and service of its products in this state. (Record 54, 79).

(3) Does Piper advertise or solicit business in Utah?

It is clear and undisputed that Piper actively and on an ongoing basis seeks business in Utah by media advertising and direct mail solicitation. (Record 52-80).

(4) Does Piper own property, or an interest in property, in Utah?

Piper owns at least a reversionary interest in personal property located in the State of Utah. (Record 78-79). This tangible personal property was supplied by Piper to Utah residents with the intent such would be located on at least a semi-permanent basis in this state. (Record 78-79). Thus Piper has an interest in property located in Utah which it intentionally placed here.

(5) Are Piper's activities in Utah sporadic or transitory, or are said activities continuous and systematic?

Piper's activities and contact with Utah clearly are not "sporadic or transitory" but are continuous, systematic and ongoing. (Record 52-80). Piper, on an ongoing, systematic, continuous basis advertises and solicits business in Utah, directs its employees to come into Utah and conduct business here, contracts with Utah residents and Utah business entities and provides warranty services in Utah through its agents. (Record 52-80). This factor alone should be sufficient to subject Piper to the jurisdiction of Utah's courts.

(6) Does the claim of Abbott arise from activities of Piper in Utah?

Abbott's claim against Piper is based upon an alleged breach of contract for the sale of an aircraft. Piper through Piper's agent defendant Corpac-West, contracted to sell to Abbott an aircraft and contracted to provide warranty services with respect to said aircraft. That contract was with a Utah resident, (Abbott), to supply goods and services in this state. Therefore the claim herein asserted by Abbott as against Piper arises out of Piper's dealings with a resident of Utah under an agreement to supply goods to be located in this state and services in connection with those goods to be performed in Utah. Thus the claim here being asserted arises, at least in part, out of Piper's activities in Utah.

(7) Would this controversy be best resolved in Utah or elsewhere in terms of the degree of hardship it would impose upon the parties if the action is maintained in Utah?

The record in this action as presently developed weighs in favor of Abbott on this factor. Abbott's principal place of business is in Utah, it contracted to purchase the aircraft here and was entitled to receive warranty services in this state. Piper has not asserted it would work a hardship upon it if it were required to defend this action in Utah. It is fair to impute to Piper, on the basis of Piper's substantial contacts with Utah voluntarily accomplished as above stated, that it, at the time of such agreement, understood full well the potential of having to answer in a Utah court for any breach or alleged breach of such agreement. Therefore it is not unfair to hold Piper subject to the jurisdiction of Utah's courts. It should be considered that Piper's co-defendant, Corpac-West, is subject to the jurisdiction of the Utah courts, the case being still pending against it, and submission of Piper to the jurisdiction of a Utah court will avoid multiplicity of actions.

As applied to the record thus far developed in this lawsuit the Hill v. Zale Corp. factors show that Piper is doing business in Utah. Piper seeks the business of Utah residents, Piper sends its employees into this state, it contracts on a regular, continuous, ongoing basis with Utah residents and businesses, Piper has tangible personal property located in Utah and Piper's contacts with Utah are continuous, systematic and ongoing.

This Court has recently provided substantial guidance relative to those situations wherein it is proper for a Utah

Court to assert jurisdiction over a foreign corporation manufacturer. In Pellegrini v. Sachs & Sons, supra fn.1, that guidance is stated as follows:

"In her "situs of causation" argument plaintiff cites a number of cases as being quite liberal in approving jurisdiction over nonresidents in the states where products have caused injury. But it will be found that most of these cases are against manufacturers. The adjudications are on the ground that in sending their wares into foreign states they have a substantial and continuing interest in the sale and distribution; and that their conduct through their agents in promoting those objectives is sufficient to meet the 'minimum contacts' test."

522 P.2d at 706.

Abbott submits that Piper, as a manufacturer of aircraft, (Record 41-42), sends its goods and wares into Utah, has a substantial interest in the sale and distribution of said goods in this state and engages in conduct in Utah, through agents, sufficient for a Utah court to properly assert jurisdiction over Piper.

As is above shown it is clear that Piper has engaged in a number of activities in this state by which it has purposefully availed itself of the privilege of conducting activities within Utah.² Therefore maintenance of this suit by Abbott against Piper in Utah "does not offend 'traditional notions

² See Hanson v. Denckla, 357 U.S. 235, 253, 78 S.Ct. 1228, 1240, 2 L.Ed.2d 1283, 1298 (1958).

of fair play and substantial justice."³ Piper should be held accountable in a proper Utah court in this lawsuit.

POINT II

PIPER IS SUBJECT TO THE JURISDICTION OF UTAH'S COURTS FOR THE TRANSACTION GIVING RISE TO THIS LAWSUIT BY VIRTUE OF UTAH'S LONG ARM STATUTE.

Utah Code Annotated §78-27-24 (Supp. 1975) sets forth those grounds upon which the Courts of Utah may exercise jurisdiction over persons or entities who are not residents of Utah, but who should nonetheless answer to Utah's citizens in Utah's Courts. That statute reads in pertinent part as follows:

"Any person, notwithstanding section 16-10-102, whether or not a citizen or resident of this state, who in person or through an agent does any of the following enumerated acts, submits himself, and if an individual, his personal representative, to the jurisdiction of the courts of this state as to any claim arising from:

- (1) The transaction of any business within this state;
- (2) Contracting to supply services or goods in this state;
- (3) The causing of any injury within this state whether tortious or by breach of warranty;"

³ International Shoe Co. v. Washington, 329 U.S. 310, 316, 66 S.Ct. 154, 158, 90 L.Ed. 95, 102 (1945).

Additionally Utah Code Annotated §78-27-22 (Supp. 1975) declares the purpose of the above cited statutory provisions to be:

"The provisions of this act, to ensure maximum protection to citizens of this state, should be applied so as to assert jurisdiction over nonresident defendants to the fullest extent permitted by the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution."

It is thus obvious that if a nonresident accomplishes any of the acts enumerated in Utah Code Annotated §78-27-24, supra, and assertion of jurisdiction over that nonresident by the courts of this state does not offend the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution, then jurisdiction over such nonresident must be sustained in conformance with the above stated declaration of the Utah Legislature.

A.

Piper has Contracted to Supply Services in this State and has Caused Injury in Utah by a Breach of Warranty.

Exhibit A of Abbott's Complaint on file herein is titled "Aircraft Purchase Order, Terms, Conditions, and Warranties." (Record 13). Paragraph 7 of that Exhibit reads as follows:

"The aircraft products purchased herein are covered by only the following warranties and no other:

The written warranty of the Aircraft Manufacturer, if any, in existence at the time the aircraft described herein is delivered together with those written warranties, if

any, issued by any product manufacturers whose products are purchased herein and which warranties accompany the delivery of the aircraft products.

NO OTHER WARRANTY, WHETHER OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS OR OTHERWISE, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED IN FACT OR BY LAW, IS GIVEN WITH RESPECT TO SUCH AIRCRAFT PRODUCTS, AND NO OTHER FURTHER OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY SHALL BE INCURRED BY SELLER BY REASON OF THE MANUFACTURE AND/OR SALE OF THE AIRCRAFT PRODUCTS OR THEIR USE, WHETHER FOR BREACH OF ANY WARRANTY, NEGLIGENCE OF MANUFACTURE, OR OTHERWISE."

Exhibit A of the Complaint, (Record 13), is the agreement entered into between Abbott and Defendant Corpac-West for the purchase of the aircraft which is the subject of this lawsuit. Defendant Corpac-West, through execution of Exhibit A, pledged and bound Piper, as the manufacturer of the Aircraft in question, to provide warranty services to an aircraft whose owner was a company with its principal place of business located in Utah and, as a point in fact, would maintain the situs of the aircraft in Utah. Thus Defendant Corpac-West, in this instance, was acting as agent for Piper, binding Piper through contractual obligation in an agency relationship of at least apparent authority to provide warranty services to an aircraft located in Utah. Therefore Piper, through its agent Corpac-West, contracted to supply services in this state. Piper fits within the precise terms of Utah Code Annotated §78-27-24(2), supra, and is subject to the jurisdiction of the courts of this state for any breach of that contractual obligation. A breach of contract by

Piper is precisely what is alleged in The First Cause of Action of Plaintiff's Complaint. (Record 2-7).

Additionally, Utah Code Annotated §78-27-24(3), supra, subjects a nonresident to the jurisdiction of the courts of this state if said non-resident causes injury within Utah through a breach of warranty. The Second Cause of Action of Abbott's Complaint alleges that Piper failed to fulfill warranty obligations as a manufacturer of the aircraft in question which caused injury to Abbott in Utah. Thus, Piper is also subject to the jurisdiction of the courts of this state due to the allegations of The Second Cause of Action of Abbott's Complaint. (Record 7-9). Clearly then, based upon the statutes in question, Piper is subject to the jurisdiction of the courts of Utah if asserting such jurisdiction does not run afoul of the parameters of the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the U. S. Constitution.

Finally, Point I of this brief clearly demonstrates that Piper has, and is, transacting business in the State of Utah. Thus Piper falls within the parameters of subsections (1), (2) and (3) of Utah Code Ann. § 78-27-24, supra, and must be found subject to the jurisdiction of the courts of this state.

B.

Assertion of Jurisdiction over
Piper by Utah Courts does not
Offend against the Due Process
Clause of the Fourteenth Amend-
ment to the U. S. Constitution.

The circumstances under which a state may assert jurisdiction over an unwilling nonresident Defendant without offending the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the U. S. Constitution are laid out in three (3) United States Supreme Court decisions, International Shoe Co. v. Washington, 329 U.S. 310, 66 S.Ct. 154, 90 L.Ed. 95 (1945); Hanson v. Denckla, 357 U.S. 235, 78 S.Ct. 1228, 2 L.Ed. 2d 1283 (1958); and McGee v. International Life Insurance Co., 355 U.S. 220, 78 S.Ct. 199, 2 L.Ed. 2d 223 (1957). The United States Supreme Court in the International Shoe case, supra, set out the following test relative to when and under what circumstances a nonresident of any given state is or may be subject to the jurisdiction of that state's courts:

"Hence his presence within the territorial jurisdiction of a court was prerequisite to its rendition of a judgment personally binding him. Pennoyer v. Neff, 95 U.S. 714, 733, 24 L ed 565, 572. But now that the capias ad respondendum has given way to personal service of summons or other forms of notice, due process requires only that in order to subject a defendant to a judgment in personam, if he be not present within the territory of the forum, he have certain minimum contacts with it such that the maintenance of the suit does not offend 'traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice.'"

Id., 326 U.S. 316, 90 L.Ed. 102

And further:

"Those [due process] demands may be met by such contacts of the corporation with the state of the forum as make it reasonable, in the context of our federal system of government, to require the corporation to defend the particular suit which is brought there. An 'estimate of the inconveniences' which would result to the corporation from a trial away from its 'home' or principal place of business is relevant in this connection."

Id., 326 U.S. 317, 90 L.Ed. 102.

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