1977

# Abbott G. M. Diesel, Inc. v. Piper Aircraft Corporation et al : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an action by plaintiff for damages allegedly resulting from breach of warranty by defendants Piper Aircraft Corporation (hereinafter Piper) and Piper Corporate Aircraft Center West (hereinafter CORPAC) in the sale of an aircraft to the plaintiff.

## DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

Defendant Piper Aircraft filed a motion to quash and to dismiss for lack of personal jurisdiction of that defendant which motion was granted by the trial court and the action as against Piper Aircraft Corporation was dismissed.

## RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Defendant and Respondent seeks affirmance of the order below quashing the service of summons and dismissing the action against it.

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

We do not believe that the statement of facts contained in appellant's brief is complete or gives the entire factual background. Therefore, in the interest of completeness and accuracy, we restate here the entire facts.

Plaintiff contracted to purchase from defendant CORPAC, a certain Piper Aircraft. Defendant Piper was not party to the contract, although the contract, by its terms included the manufacturer's standard warranty. (R. 3, 12-)

After having owned and operated the aircraft for more than a year, plaintiff commenced this action for rescission of the contract, and damages for claimed breach of warranty. (R. 2-11.) Summons was purportedly served upon

Piper by service upon it at its place of business in Pennsylvania. (R. 40.) This clearly indicates that plaintiff was proceeding under Utah's long-arm statute.

Piper attacked the purported service of summons by a motion to quash and to dismiss. (R. 38-39.) In support of its motion, Piper filed an affidavit of John F. Leeson. The substance of that affidavit is set forth herewith for the convenience of the court:

"John R. Leeson, being first duly sworn upon oath, deposes and says:

"That he is the Treasurer of Piper . . . and . . . as such . . . executes this affidavit . . . in support of its motion to quash the service of summons and to dismiss the action on file herein. That Piper . . . is a corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Pennsylvania. That it is engaged in the business of manufacturing airplanes. That it has three manufacturing plants, located in Vero Beach, Florida, Lakeland, Florida and Lock Haven, Pennsylvania. That it is not engaged in manufacturing in any other location and is not engaged in manufacturing in the State of Utah. That Piper . . . is not now and never has been qualified or authorized to do

business in the State of Utah. That it has no employees, representatives, salesmen, or other agents in the State of Utah. That it carries on no business activity in the State of Utah and maintains no records in said state. That all aircraft sold by defendant have been sold and delivered on a F.A.F. (Fly Away Basis) at its manufacturing plants in Florida or Pennsylvania. That defendant does not now maintain and never has maintained any office or physical place of business in the State of Utah. That it has no investments, debts, books, or records in the State of Utah. That it does not own or lease property of any kind in the State of Utah. That it has no goods or property stored, warehoused, or on consignment in the State of Utah. That it has no subsidiary or affiliated company or branch or regional office in the State of Utah. That it maintains no bank accounts within the State of Utah.

"That there are some independent businessmen and corporations in the State of Utah which hold themselves out as dealers in airplanes, and a number of such businesses sell Piper aircraft. That this defendant owns no interest in such dealers, does not control their operation, and has no business arrangement with them. That there is an

independent corporation in the State of Utah known as Intermountain Piper Incorporated which acts as a distributor of Piper aircraft and sells such Piper aircraft to dealers. That this defendant owns no interest in said corporation. That said corporation acts as an independent contractor with respect to all transactions between them. That from time to time said distributor orders aircraft from defendant, and on such occasions the order is always accepted at defendant's offices in Florida or in Pennsylvania. That all aircraft sold by defendant to said distributor are sold F.A.F. defendant's plants to Vero Beach, Florida, Lakeland, Florida and Lock Haven, Pennsylvania." (Emphasis added.)

In response to this plaintiff filed an affidavit of Robert G. Abbott, president of plaintiff corporation, the substance of which is as follows:

"2. That for a number of years Affiant has received numerous communications and sales literature from Defendant Piper . . . such communications and literature being forwarded to Plaintiff from Defendant Piper Aircraft Corporation's offices at Lockhaven, Pennsylvania and directed to Plaintiff at its business address in Salt Lake County,

State of Utah; attached hereto as Exhibit 'A' and by this reference made a part hereof are true and correct copies of such communications and literature received by Affiant on about the dates indicated on the correspondence, said communication and literature are representative samples of others previously received by Affiant.

"3. Affiant is a member of the Aircraft Owners' Pilots' Association (AOPA) which association publishes a monthly magazine entitled 'The AOPA Pilot'; said magazine distributed nationwide by mail to aircraft owners, aircraft pilots, and the public who are members of AOPA; said magazine is similarly distributed within the State of Utah.

"4. Attached hereto as Exhibit 'B' and by this reference made a part hereof are true and correct copies of advertisements found at pages 12 and 95 of the August, 1970 issue of 'The AOPA Pilot', which advertisements are representative of advertisements regularly placed by Defendant Piper . . . in each issue hereof.

"5. 'Flying' magazine is an independent, general circulated magazine written and printed for the use and enjoyment of the general public, and in particular that portion of the public which is general aviation oriented;

said magazine is nationally circulated by mail and newsstand sales on a monthly basis and is generally distributed within the State of Utah.

"6. Attached hereto as Exhibit 'C' and by this reference made a part hereof are true and correct copies of advertisements found at pages 82, 83, 102-105 of the September, 1976 issue of 'Flying' magazine, which advertisements are representative of similar advertisements regularly published by Defendant Piper . . . in said magazine.

"7. Attached hereto as Exhibit 'D' is a true and correct copy of an Affidavit executed by William R. Farley, a substantial stockholder in Defendant CORPAC-WEST, which Affidavit was made and executed by the said William R. Farley and filed . . . in a case entitled Milton Bauermeister Plaintiff, v. Piper Aircraft Corporation, a corporation . . . upon information and belief, Affiant states that the statements contained in said Affidavit were true and correct when made, August 30, 1972, and that the statements contained therein remain true as of the date hereof.

"8. Defendant Piper . . . employs a Regional Sales Representative and a Regional Service Representative both of whom reside outside the State of Utah who, as a part

of their employment, regularly visit the State of Utah at five to six week intervals to promote customer relations confer with Defendant Piper's sales outlets with respect sales and service matters."

As appears from the affidavit of Abbott he adjo by reference an affidavit executed by William R. Farley the case known as Bauermeister v. Piper Aircraft Corporation et al. A copy of the substance of that affidavit is here set forth:

"1. That he is the President of Intermountain Piper, Inc., a corporation duly authorized under the laws the state of Utah and having its principal place of business in Salt Lake County, State of Utah.

"2. That Intermountain Piper, Inc., is an authorized distributor of Piper Aircraft products, manufactured by Piper Aircraft Corporation, of Lock Haven, Pennsylvania, Vero Beach, Florida, and that Intermountain Piper, Inc., duly organized September 23, 1958, as Thunderbird Aviation Corporation and later changed its name to Intermountain Piper, Inc., on September 19, 1967, and presently has its offices at 230 North 2300 West, Salt Lake City, Utah.

"3. That Intermountain Piper, Inc., is a party to a written contract between Piper . . . and Intermountain

Piper, Inc. wherein Intermountain Piper, Inc., is the distributor for Piper Aircraft and other Piper products within the 'Area of primary responsibility', which includes the State of Utah.

"4. That said written contract allows Intermountain Piper, Inc., to establish a dealer organization for Piper . . . for the sale of its aircraft and other products within the State of Utah and elsewhere, as described in the contract as 'area of primary responsibility.'

"5. That approximately four years ago Piper . . . initiated a program known as Piper Flite Centers for the purpose of flight training in and rental of Piper aircraft. Said program has been and is now available to Piper aircraft dealers and other qualified airport fixed base operators through Piper . . . distributors throughout the various states, including Utah.

"6. That Piper . . . encourages its distributors to establish Piper Flite Centers within their areas of primary responsibility, and that at the present time there are five Piper Flite Centers in the State of Utah; namely, St. George, Provo, Ogden and two in Salt Lake City.

"7. That a uniform type of emblem and sign formed in the character style of 'Piper Flite Center' has been

established by Piper . . . to be displayed by 'Piper Flite Center' operators to advertise Piper aircraft services.

"8. That affiant has encouraged the establishment of Piper Flite Centers by:

(a) Disseminating information, pamphlets, and other literature concerning Piper Flite Centers provided by Piper . . . .

(b) Ordering, transporting, and delivering Piper Flite Center signs to various Piper dealers in Utah and elsewhere; said signs are the property of Intermountain Piper, Inc., but become the property of Piper . . . upon termination of the Intermountain Piper, Inc., distribution

"9. That affiant has recommended, encouraged and handled for transfer to Piper . . . such written contracts which have authorized and established various dealer franchises for the use of said Piper Flight Center format, design, program, system, lesson plans, emblems, trademark, insignia or otherwise; said Piper . . . has impliedly or expressly authorized said dealers to use any one or more of the same in encouraging residents of the State of Utah to use by rent, sale, lease, recommend, or purchase of Piper Aircraft products.

"10. That affiant through his position as President of Intermountain Piper, Inc., has handled for transmittal to Piper . . . various warranty items for Piper . . . products from and through the aforementioned dealership's organization existing within Intermountain Piper, Inc.'s 'area of primary responsibility' and in addition thereto has transmitted in behalf of Piper . . . back to said dealers various credits on the warranty of said items previously described at the approval thereof of Piper . . . .

"11. That Piper . . . employees have from time to time personally inspected various Piper dealers' facilities in Utah, appointed for the purpose of approving the facility as a Piper . . . designated maintenance facility, aka Piper Service Centers, and that dealer/Piper Service Centers have been and are now located within the State of Utah.

"12. That Piper . . . regularly distributes through the mail certain notices of suggested, mandatory or otherwise significant nature, affecting its products and known as 'service letters, service bulletins, or service directives' to registered Piper Aircraft owners within the State of Utah.

"13. That in addition, Piper . . . has from time to time and on various occasions requested help of affiant

in his business as President of Intermountain Piper, Inc. in securing addresses or disseminating said service letters, directives or suggestions to the owners of said Piper aircraft products within the State of Utah where the proper and correct address of said aircraft owner has been unavailable to said Piper . . . ." (Emphasis added.)

It should also be observed that there are no allegations in the complaint that Piper did anything in the State of Utah which gave rise to plaintiff's claim.

In summary, the affidavit of Leeson establishes without dispute that Piper is a Pennsylvania corporation, not qualified to engage in business in the State of Utah. It has only three manufacturing plants, all located in Florida and Pennsylvania. It has no manufacturing operations in Utah or in any other state. It is conceded by plaintiff that Piper has no resident employees or salesmen within the State of Utah but the affidavit of Abbott tends to establish that employees of Piper visit Utah for business purposes at intervals of five to six weeks.

The affidavit of Leeson further establishes without dispute that all aircraft sold by the defendant are sold on a "fly away" basis at its manufacturing plants in Florida

and Pennsylvania. Piper does not maintain any office or physical place of business in Utah. It owns no real property here and has no investments, debts, books or records in the State of Utah. It has no goods or property stored or warehoused in the State of Utah, but it appears from the affidavit of Farley that it may have a contingent remainderman's right to certain personal property. It has no subsidiary or affiliated company in the State of Utah and it maintains no bank accounts here.

Intermountain Piper, Incorporated is an independent distributor in which defendant Piper Aircraft owns no interest. Intermountain Piper in turn has dealerships at various places in the state in which Piper Aircraft has no interest. Despite frequent assertions by plaintiff in its brief that Intermountain Piper is an agent of Piper, the affidavit of Leeson states that "Intermountain Piper is an independent contractor" and this is undisputed and uncontradicted in the record before the court.

There is no evidence that Piper advertises in any of the local news media or in any newspapers or magazines published in Utah. There is evidence that it advertises in certain national publications, some of which find their way

into Utah, and that it does correspond with owners and potential owners of Piper Aircraft in Utah. We specifically disagree with that portion of plaintiff's statement of facts on pages 3 and 4, wherein it is stated Piper has entered into a number of written contracts with Utah residents, has established Piper Flite Centers in Utah, property located in Utah, and is regularly, consciously, carefully directing and controlling the sale and use of Piper manufactured products in this State, and that Piper through agents performs warranty services in this State, that Piper regularly seeks the aid of Utah residents in promoting its business in Utah. Although appellant furnishes record citations in support of them, our examination of those citations fails to disclose any factual support for them.

We also note our disagreement with the statement on page 6 of appellant's brief that Piper contracts on a continuous, ungoing, basis with local Utah business firms in order to have sales and service outlets in Utah, and that these local businesses are tightly controlled by Piper for the purpose of fostering the sale and service of Piper products in this state. These statements are simply unsupported by the record.

## ARGUMENT

Piper is not doing business in Utah, does not have those "minimal contacts" with Utah which would make it subject to the jurisdiction of the Utah courts, and is not subject to the jurisdiction of the Utah courts. Plaintiff has broken its argument into two separate points, first claiming that Piper is doing business in Utah, and alternately claiming that if it is not doing business in Utah that it is subject to the jurisdiction of the Utah courts under the long-arm statute. We believe that this approach simply confuses the issue. Either Piper is subject to the jurisdiction of the courts of this state, or it is not.

At page 11 of its brief, appellant claims that Piper is subject to the jurisdiction of the Utah courts under the terms and provisions of Section 78-27-24, subparts (1) through (3), which read as follows:

"Any person, notwithstanding section 16-10-102, whether or not a citizen or resident of this state, who in person or through an agent does any of the following enumerated acts, submits himself, and if an individual, his personal representative, to the jurisdiction of the courts of this state as to any claim arising from:

(1) The transaction of any business within the state;

(2) Contracting to supply services or goods in this state;

(3) The causing of any injury within this state whether tortious or by breach of warranty;

. . . ."

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